DEVELOPING TEACHING WRITING PROCEDURE BASED ON COMMUNICATIVE LANGUAGE TEACHING (CLT) TO IMPROVE STUDENTS' WRITING ACHIEVEMENT

A THESIS

By:

Mulia Zalmetri



MASTER PROGRAM OF ENGLISH EDUCATION LANGUAGE AND ARTS EDUCATION DEPARTMENT FACULTY OF TEACHER TRAINING AND EDUCATION LAMPUNG UNIVERSITY 2024

ABSTRACT

DEVELOPING TEACHING WRITING PROCEDURE BASED ON COMMUNICATIVE LANGUAGE TEACHING (CLT) TO IMPROVE STUDENTS' WRITING ACHIEVEMENT

By Mulia Zalmetri

This study aims to find out the significant difference in students' writing achievement after being taught using the procedure of teaching writing based on Communicative Language Teaching and using the original procedure of teaching writing. Moreover, the researcher also wants to find out aspect of writing that improves the most after being taught by using procedure of teaching writing based Communicative Language Teaching. An experimental design was employed within quantitative research framework, involving two classes of seventh-grade of junior school students, each consisting of 20 subjects. The experimental group participated in a learning process applying procedure of teaching writing based on CLT principles, while the control group was taught through original procedure of teaching writing. The data were collected through writing tests given to the students before and after receiving the treatment. Afterwards, the data were analyzed through the independent t-test to answer first research question and Repeated Measure t-test to answer second research question. The results show a significant improvement in students' writing achievement after being taught by using the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT principles. This was evident from the increase in the mean score of posttest higher than pretest (75.7 > 69.4). Moreover, the result showed that sig. (2-tailed) is 0.000 which is lower than 0.05 (0.000 < 0.05). It means that H1 is statistically accepted. it can be proved that there is a significant difference in the students' writing achievement between the experimental and control group. Particularly, the highest increase was observed in the aspect of organization. In conclusion, this study affirms possibility of implementing CLT principles on the procedure of teaching writing in English learning.

Keywords: Communicative Language Teaching, Procedure of Teaching Writing, Students' Writing Achievement.

DEVELOPING TEACHING WRITING PROCEDURE BASED ON COMMUNICATIVE LANGUAGE TEACHING (CLT) TO IMPROVE STUDENTS' WRITING ACHIEVEMENT

By: Mulia Zalmetri

A Thesis

Submitted in a Partial Fulfillment of Master of English Education Teacher Training and Education Faculty



MASTER PROGRAM OF ENGLISH EDUCATION LANGUAGE AND ARTS EDUCATION DEPARTMENT FACULTY OF TEACHER TRAINING AND EDUCATION LAMPUNG UNIVERSITY 2024 Research Title

: DEVELOPING TEACHING WRITING PROCEDURE BASED COMMUNICATIVE LANGUAGE TEACHING (CLT) TO **IMPROVE** STUDENTS'

WRITING ACHIEVEMENT

Student's Name

: Mulia Zalmetri

Student's Number

: 2223042011

Study Program

: Master in English Language Teaching

Department

: Language and Arts Education

Faculty

: Teacher Training and Education

APPROVED BY

Advisory Committee

Advisor

Co-Advisor

Prof. Ag. Bambang Setiyadi, M.A., Ph.D.

NIP 195905281986101001

Hery Yufrizal, M.A., Ph.D. NIP 196007191985111001

Chairperson of Department

Language and Arts Education

NIP 197003181994032002

Chairperson of Master in English LanguageTeaching

Dr. Muhammad Sukirlan, M.A. NIP 196412121990031003

ADMITTED BY

1. Examination Committee

Chairperson: Prof. Ag. Bambang Setiyadi, M.A., Ph.D.

Secretary: Hery Yufrizal, M.A., Ph.D.

Examiners : 1. Prof. Dr. Flora, M.Pd.

2. Dr. Muhammad Sukirlan, M.A.

Alley Manne

Prof. D. Sunyono, M.Si.
NIP 196512301991111001

3. Die Ford Australia Program

Program Australia M.Si.
NIP 196403261989021001

4. Graduated on : April 5th, 2024

V

LEMBAR PERNYATAAN

Dengan ini saya menyatakan dengan sebenarnya bahwa:

- 1. Tesis dengan judul "Developing Teaching Writing Procedure Based on Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) to Improve Students' Writing Achievement" adalah hasil karya saya sendiri dan saya tidak melakukan penjiplakan atau pengutipan atas karya penulis lain dengan cara yang tidak sesuai dengan tata etika ilmiah yang berlaku dalam Masyarakat akademik atau yang disebut plagiarism.
- 2. Hak intelektual atas karya ilmiah ini diserahkan sepenuhnya kepada Universitas Lampung.

Atas pernyataan ini, apabila dikemudian hari ternyata ditemukan adanya ketidakbenaran, saya bersedia menanggung akibat dan sanksi yang diberikan kepada saya, dan saya bersedia dan sanggup dituntut sesuai hukum yang berlaku,

Bandar Lampung, 29 Maret 2024

Yang membuat pernyataan,

Mulia Zalmetri

NPM, 223042011

CURRICULUM VITAE

Mulia Zalmetri was born on February 25th, 2000, in Bukit Kemuning, North Lampung. She is the second child of Mr. Adnan and Ms. Nurul Ainun. She has one oldest brother named Ananda Rizqy Pala.

She accomplished her formal education at kindergarten TK ISLAM MUSLIMIN, Bukit Kemuning and finished in 2005. Then entered Elementary School at SDN 3 Bukit Kemuning and finished in 2011. She continued her school at Junior High School in SMPN 1 Bukit Kemuning which finished in 2014. After that, she continued her study in Senior High School at SMAN 3 Kotabumi, North Lampung and completed her study in 2017.

In 2017, she continued her study at Sriwijaya University, bachelor's degree program, Faculty of Teacher Training and Education, majoring in English Education. In collage, she was active in organization of Student Executive Board (BEM) and she was also a member of AISEC organization in Sriwijaya University. Then, she graduated in 2021, cum-laude with GPA 3.62.

Having graduated from bachelor's degree, she worked in a Junior High School, SMPN 1 Bukit Kemuning and then she decided to level up her education by taking *Pendidikan Profesi Guru (PPG)* program by Kemendikbud in Lampung University and successfully finished in 2023. At the same time, she pursuing her master's degree in Lampung university while doing the PPG program.

MOTTO

My Suffering became easier because my lord promised me ease, not once but twice.

For indeed, with hardship (will be) ease.

Indeed, with hardship (will be) ease.

(QS. Al-Insyirah: 5-6)

¹ Sher'Ali, Maulawi. The Holy Qur'an: Arabic Text and English Translation, (United Kingdom: Islam International Publicactions Ltd., 2015)

-

DEDICATION

This thesis is wholeheartedly dedicated to all people who didn't give up on me to finish my magister degree. I give my deepest gratitude and dedication to Allah SWT. Thank you for the guidance, strength, power of mind, protection, and skills and for giving us a healthy life to finish this study. Heartfelt appreciation goes to my dearest parents, Mr. Adnan and Ms. Nurul Ainun, who have been my source of inspiration and gave me strength when I thought of giving up, who continually provide me with moral, spiritual, emotional, and financial support. To my one and only brother, Ananda Rizqy Pala and my lovely sister, Intan Shalehah, who shared their words of advice and encouragement to finish this study. All my beloved friends for the companion and love. Thank you so much for having me. Lastly, special dedication to all the lecturers in the English Education Study Program at Lampung University, who give us the guidance, advise, and knowledge to finish our study.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

First and foremost, I would like to praise Allah SWT, the Most Gracious, and the Most Merciful for His blessing given to me during my study and in completing this thesis. May Allah's blessing goes to His final Prophet Muhammad (peace be up on him), his family and his companions.

This thesis entitled "Developing Teaching Writing Procedure Based on Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) to Improve Students' Writing Achievement" is presented to the English Education Study Program of Lampung University as compulsory fulfillment of the requirements for Magister Degree.

With deepest gratitude and a heart full of appreciation, I would like to extent my sincere thanks to all of them, especially to:

- 1. Prof. Ag. Bambang Setiyadi, M.A., Ph.D., as my first advisor, thank you so much for your helpful guidance, patience, and support throughout this study. His guidance, vision, sincerity, and motivation have deeply inspired me. It was a great privilege and honor to study under his guidance. I am extremely grateful for his friendship, and great sense of humor. There is no single word that I can say except, "Thank you very much for guiding me as good as my parent. You are a very nice lecturer."
- 2. Hery Yufrizal, M.A., Ph.D, a wholeheartedly appreciation to my second advisor for his continuous support, patience, motivation, and immense knowledge. His guidance helped me a lot throughout writing this thesis.
- 3. Prof. Dr. Flora, M.Pd., for gloriously serving as my first examiner. Her willingness to share the knowledge and valuable feedback has contributed greatly to the improvement of this thesis.

- 4. Dr. Muhammad Sukirlan, M.A., for kindly serving as my second examiner. Your dedication of time, thoughtful constructive input, and wise suggestion helping with the figures and the final preparation of the thesis.
- 5. Lecturers and Administration Staff of the Master of English Education Department, who always give practical contributions and good assistance that facilitated us to finish the study.
- 6. English teacher of SMPN 1 Bukit Kemuning, Novila Aprida Dahlia, S.Pd., and Leni Novriyanti, S.Pd., for their support and guidance in teaching process.
- 7. The deepest gratitude for my dearest parents, Mr. Adnan and Mrs. Nurul Ainun, for they big support mentally and physically. Their boundless love gives me the strength throughout my journey.
- 8. My beloved brother and sister-in-law, Ananda Rizqy Pala and Intan Shalehah, who always give me support, motivation, and love throughout this journey.
- 9. My cousins and all of my family member, who always loves and cares me.
- 10. Sincere gratitude for all the support from big family in SMPN 1 Bukit Kemuning, whose provide me with encouragement and assistance. I am so grateful to be a part of this family.
- 11. Seventh-grade students of 2023/2024 at SMPN 1 Bukit Kemuning: Big thanks to my lovely students for the enthusiasm and energy which give the contribution to this work.
- 12. My lovely friends as thesis partner: Reynita Adlina Maharani, Nina Setiana, Sefira Sefriadi, Shalsa Shafa Marwa, Faras Seruni, Dian Pawitri, Dian Anggoro, Adelia Puspita, Nurhidayah Nurhasanah, Myra Desmayenni, and, Faiza Istifa Pirka; Thank you for all the support, help, and companion throughout this academic journey so it becomes sweet and memorable. I will never forget our togetherness.
- 13. All the students of MPBI 22, thank you for making great and positive ambience in the class that motivate me to challenge myself. The warmest class that I ever had.

хi

14. All those who have helped the researcher to complete the thesis which may

not be mentioned one by one.

Finally, the researcher remains that this work distant from perfection, recognizing

the possibility for flaws. Additionally, any comments, suggestions, or constructive

feedback are welcomed to enhance the quality of this work. Therefore, I hope this

thesis gives the contribution for educational development and future research.

Bandar Lampung, 29 Maret 2024

The researcher

Mulia Zalmetri

NPM. 2223042011

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AB	SSTRACT	i
	OVER	
	PPROVED	
ADMITTED		
	EMBAR PERNYATAAN JRRICULUM VITAE	
	OTTO	
	EDICATION	
	CKNOWLEDGEMENTS	
	ONTENTS	
	ST OF TABLESST APPENDICES	
I.		
	1.1 Background of the Research	1
	1.2 Research Questions	10
	1.3 The Objectives of the Research	10
	1.4 The Uses of the Research	10
	1.5 The Scope of the Research	11
	1.6 Definition of Terms	12
II.	LITERATURE REVIEW	
	2.1 Concept of Writing	13
	2.2 Aspects of Writing	14
	2.3 Stages of Writing	16
	2.4 Teaching Writing	17
	2.5 Descriptive Text	20
	2.6 Concept of Communicative Language Teaching	22
	2.7 Procedure of Teaching Writing Descriptive Text Based on	
	Communicative Language Teaching	26

2.8 Theoretical Assumptions	32
2.9 Hypotheses	34
III. METHODS	
3.1 Design	36
3.2 Variables	37
3.3 Setting	38
3.4 Data Sources	38
3.5 Data Collecting Technique	38
3.6 Research Procedure	39
3.7 Validity and Reliability	41
3.8 Data Analysis	43
3.9 Data Treatment	44
3.9.1 Normality Test	44
3.9.2 Homogeneity Test	45
3.10 Hypotheses Testing	45
IV. RESULT AND DISCUSSION	
4.1 Implementation of Procedure of Teaching Writing Based	lon
Communicative Language Teaching	47
4.2 Result of The Research	49
4.2.1. Result of First Research Question	52
4.2.2. Result of Second Research Question	55
4.3 Discussion	58
4.3.1 Discussion of First Research Question	58
4.3.2 Discussion of Second Research Question	60
V. CONCLUSION AND SUGGESTION.	
5.1 Conclusion	63
5.2 Suggestion	64
5.2.1 English Teacher	64
5.2.2 Further Researchers	65
REFERENCES	
APPENDICES	

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1. Procedure of Teaching Writing Descriptive Text based on CLT	29
Table 2. Reliability of Pre-test	50
Table 3. Reliability of Post-test	50
Table 4. Homogeneity of Pre-test	51
Table 5. Homogeneity of Post-test	51
Table 6. Test of Normality (Control Class)	52
Table 7. Test of Normality (Experimental Class)	52
Table 8. N-Gain of Pre-test and Post-test Score	53
Table 9. Distribution of Students' Scores	53
Table 10. Independent Sample T-Test	54
Table 11. Gain of Each Aspect of Writing	55
Table 12. Paired Samples Test	56

LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix 1. Writing Test	72
Appendix 2. Lesson Plan Control Class	73
Appendix 3. Lesson Plan Experimental Class	79
Appendix 4. Students' Self-Assessment	94
Appendix 5. Scoring Rubric for Writing Test	95
Appendix 6. Expert Validation of Test	98
Appendix 7. Results of Students' Pretest (Control Class)	104
Appendix 8. Results of Students' Pretest (Experimental Class)	105
Appendix 9. Results of Students' Post-test (Control Class)	106
Appendix 10. Results of Students' Post-test (Experimental Class)	107
Appendix 11. Permission Letter	108
Appendix 12. Response Letter	109
Appendix 13. Research Documentation	110

I. INTRODUCTION

This part presents; background of the study, research questions, the objectives of the study, uses of the study, scope of the study, and definition of the terms.

1.1 Background of the Study

Writing is one of the skills that must be mastered in learning English. Writing is also needed by students to achieve other English skills such as reading, speaking, and listening. Therefore, writing can be a crucial skill among other language skills. Reszy (2013) states that writing is one of the language skills besides listening, speaking, and reading that must be mastered by English learners. Students have to able to express their thoughts in writing to develop their ideas, and make readers interested. Through writing, students can transfer information and knowledge to others. Basically, writing is the most complicated language skill to master. This is reasonable because writing required mastery not only of grammatical and rhetorical devices but also of conceptual and judgmental elements (Heaton, 1990). Since writing is a productive skill, it also helps the students develop their ability in expressing what they feel and think. Writing is one of the communication skills that is important in all subject areas in the curriculum. This is because the students should be able to communicate in the target language in spoken and written language.

As a crucial skill, writing should be taught intensively at school. The process of learning writing has widely spread from junior level of education through university levels. Especially in junior high schools, writing has been a compulsory subject and part of overall evaluation of English learning. One of learning writing skills in junior high school is learning to write descriptive text. Descriptive text is a kind of text that describes something, a person, a scene, or an object in words so others can imagine it (Jayanti, 2019). The researcher uses descriptive text in order to make students interested in writing class because they can describe things, place, or people around them which are impressed them very much.

In writing, students are trained to be a good writer. Meanwhile, for some students, writing is more difficult than other skills. Most students have struggled to explore, organize, and generate ideas in writing text (Nurlatifah and Yusuf, 2022). Although the students were aware about the topic they would be writing about, they struggled with how to express them. They often had difficulties expressing their ideas into appropriate words or sentences as stated by Nuriasih et al. (2019). Despite having been assigned a topic to write on, they were unable to immediately begin their writing. Although they have produced a few lines, it can be noted that they typically struggle with how to continue writing. Therefore, they frequently stop writing. As stated by Silva (1993), EFL students tend to do less planning, less fluent by using fewer words, and less effective in organizing materials. Some of the students also do not know how to write a correct descriptive text and she found that the students still did not understand about the material and describing objects in detail. Related to a recent study by

Febriani (2022), students had issues when the teacher's strategy and approach were improperly used. The use of ineffective teaching strategies might make students less motivated to learn, which affects how well they absorb the lessons they are taught. Recognizing that language mastery is a component of communication skills. Emphasizing a person's capacity to utilize the language is crucial.

The purpose of teaching and learning English in Indonesia based on *Kurikulum Medeka* is to use the language for communication. Communication takes place in two forms namely spoken and written form. The spoken form is considered to be the easiest, simplest and the most effective way to communicate in any language. On the other hand, the written form is not as simple and as easy as the spoken one, but it is also important to be applied in communication (Harmyn, 2013). It is related to the goal of the English subject to provide the students' English communication skills in the material context both orally and written. Agbatogun (2014) states that second language (L2) learning needs to use the target language in interaction among the learners, and needs their active participation in authentic context. It means that students' active engagement and participation in the classroom can influence the students' academic performance positively through interaction and communication.

According to Long (1996) as cited in Muho and Kurani (2011), interaction and communication are the facilitator of language acquisition. Meaningful interaction and communication are crucial to provide the information gaps between students and teachers regarding stimulating students' active participation in the activities. It is in line with Murcia (1991) who states that

teachers should present activities which are meaningful and to the students and which will motivate them to become committed to sustaining that communication is intended to accomplish a specific learning goal in the classroom. Therefore, it is important to give the students meaningful interactions through communicative activities in the teaching and learning process which enables students to transmit, interpret messages, and give meanings in the interaction between the students (Astawa et al., 2017). If they can achieve meaningful interactions, it can improve their learning motivation and achieve learning goals easily.

Furthermore, what happens in the world of teaching writing is that the teacher does not pay attention to provide the students with communicative activities. That can be important factor that influences the result of the students' writing because the students cannot understand the message that the students are trying to convey. This happens because the students only focus on how to write individually rather than communicatively. Students must write many things at once because the process of writing itself has correlation between writing activity and other aspects. In the process of writing, the students need to explore ideas by having some communicative activities as they practice their ideas before they start to write. Megaib (2014) and Ariyanti (2016) realize that the problems faced by the students are because writing was not taught in an effective way by the teacher and was not learned maximally because it does not provide meaningful interaction and communicative activities. There are still many EFL teachers in Indonesia who do not pay attention to providing the students in teaching writing communicatively to fix and help the students'

problems in writing (Halimi, 2008; Fan, 2016). This is also in line with Marcellino 's (2009) and Walia's (2012) studies that show the students have a passive style of learning and students resist participating in communicative class activities. Learning activities in English classes at schools still minimally apply communicative activities which make the students are not able to express and organize their ideas well in constructing a text.

Persuading students to actively participate in the writing process is one of the most frequent problems teachers come up. Teachers often talk about how hard it is to get their students to actively participate in writing assignments. It frequently happening, they noted, that students exhibit a lack of excitement, which restricts the development of interest and involvement in writing assignments. This lack of motivation is a significant barrier to creating engaging and successful writing teaching. Moreover, many teachers have shared concerns over countering students' lack of interest in writing. They claimed that students see writing as a chore rather than a way to express themselves, which makes teaching writing skills even more difficult. For teachers, it is discouraging when students do not possess a natural motivation for striving hard at their writing. Moreover, teaching of writing should be properly and effectively conducted by teacher in order to improve the Indonesian EFL students' writing achievement and to resolve their problems in writing. Since the learning objective in teaching English in Indonesia based on Kurikulum Merdeka which involves developing communicative competence of students, it is considered a challenging task for teacher to create an effective and communicative classroom activity.

To solve such problems, there should be a method or approach used by the teacher which can provide more effective with communicative activities in the classroom to help difficulties in writing faced by the students. Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) approach comes with an idea that is in line with that viewpoint. Richards (2001) defines CLT as an approach to foreign or second language teaching which emphasizes that the goal of language learning is communicative competence. Littlewood (1981) explains that one of the most characteristic features of communicative language teaching is that it pays systematic attention to functional as well as structural aspects of language, combining these into a more fully communicative view. Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) focuses on students' interaction with the teacher and other students as a means of creating language skills in a target language.

In CLT, classroom activities should facilitate learners to be actively involved in the learning process so that they get more target language exposure by practicing the language learned. As stated by Alharbi (2020), CLT becomes an approach focused on student-centered and aims to improve listening, reading, writing, and speaking skills, while at the same time enhancing students' understanding of cultures and helping them advance the target language for everyday use. One of the misconceptions about CLT is that it can only be applied to improve speaking skills. In fact, it might be used to teach writing as well as the other two skills. As Savignon (2003) states that the principles of communicative language learning may be equally applied in teaching English toward reading and writing. It is not merely about teaching English for oral communication. Therefore, it is clear that any English teacher should treat the

teaching of writing with the same intention as in teaching speaking skill, so that the goal of the English teaching as a whole can be achieved.

CLT has several characteristics that can be incorporated in teaching writing procedure (Richards and Rodgers, 2001). First, CLT engages the learners in real life situations and real communication in the classroom with communicative and information gap activities. Different from traditional methods which focus on grammatical units, the application of CLT focuses on various communicative activities such as working in pairs or groups, the use of pictures, videos or animations, peer feedback, and the presentation. Meanwhile, the teacher also provides the students with information gap activities. Information gap is an activity where learners are missing the information that they need to complete a task and need to talk to each other to find it (Harmer, 2004). Information gap activities are useful in developing the students' ability to organize information. This principle highlights several important things including creating a classroom situation in which information gaps exist among students, encouraging students to participate in group, and providing meaningful tasks.

Second, authentic and learning materials should be the goal of classroom activities. Authentic means provide the students with "real-life" materials. These might include language-based realia, such as signs, magazines, advertisements, and newspapers, or graphic and visual sources around which communicative activities can be built, such as outline, maps, pictures, symbols, graphs, and charts. Different kinds of objects can be used to support communicative exercises. Third, CLT emphasize cooperative tasks rather than individualistic tasks. In its application, CLT has created a comfortable writing

learning condition. Thus, students enjoy the activities because the students can work collaboratively and compete hard in groups as well as individually work. They achieve greater success in writing because they are a part of the teaching learning process. Students are expected to interact with other people in their writings. Many students struggled to put their thoughts into the form of text. Thus, communicative and information gap exercises were strongly advised. Students can share their ideas on the topics and help them to process ideas into the form of text. Teachers should also help develop an environment in which students are comfortable with group work.

Fourth, communication is the fundamental objective of language and learners need to develop all the skills of language. In the CLT context, communication may be encouraged from the very beginning of the teaching and learning process. CLT emphasizes meaningful communication from the beginning of class to help the students develop and achieve the combination of other skills such as reading, speaking, and listening. Lastly, learning is a process of creative construction that involves trial and error. It is important to provide the students with feedback during the teaching writing process to make sure they get an explanation of what is accurate and inaccurate about their work. Not only from the teacher, peer feedback is also beneficial for students. Peer feedback allows students to clarify their own ideas as they explain them to classmates and as they formulate questions about their classmates' writing. It also helps students to continuously improve and keep their work at an optimal level and keep on track in writing. Therefore, five characteristics or principles of CLT above can

be applied in teaching writing procedure to help the students achieve the learning of goals communicatively.

Most previous studies conducted by some experts such as Nunan (1989), Littlewood (1981), Savignon (2003) agree that communicative language teaching is one of the innovative approaches to enable the students to communicate in the target language. It means in teaching writing, CLT will provide the useful situation where the students can share their knowledge and support their pair in mastering writing in English (Liunokas, 2021). Communicative language teaching also motivates and encourages the students to trigger the language acquisition (Burke, 2013). It focuses on student-centered activities that involve the students to actively participate in the classroom activities to effectively achieve learning goals. Therefore, CLT approach is suitable to reduce the problem faced by the students in writing and achieve successful writing achievement.

Furthermore, teachers can manage the process of language learning by creating a more fascinating learning environment for students by providing them with communicative activities to achieve the communicative competence as the goal of learning objective. After engaging and gaining students' motivation in learning through communicative activities, it could impact students' successful writing achievement. Moreover, the researcher wants to identify the difference in students' writing achievement by using the procedure of teaching writing based on communicative language teaching, and the aspects of writing which improve the most in teaching and learning process.

I.2 Research Questions

- 1. Is there any significant difference in students' writing achievement after being taught by the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT and using the original procedure of teaching writing?
- 2. Which aspect of writing that improves the most after being taught by the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT?

I.3 The Objectives of the Study

In accordance with the research questions, the present study is aimed at:

- To find out the significant difference in students' writing achievement
 after being taught by the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT
 and using the original procedure of teaching writing.
- 2. To find out aspect of writing that improves the most after being taught by the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT.

I.4 Uses of the Study

Considering the aims of the research, the significance of the study can be described as follows:

1. Theoretical Use

The research findings might help support the previous theory about the implementation of procedure of teaching writing based on Communicative Language Teaching.

2. Practical Use

- a. For the students, the implementation of procedure teaching writing based on the Communicative Language Teaching approach in the teaching-learning process is expected to help them to improve their achievement in writing.
- b. For the teachers, it can help the teacher with a new insight that might be taken as a guideline in teaching writing so that the students could comprehend their understanding in English texts and optimize their writing achievement.

I.5 Scope of the Study

The researcher limits the scope of this research with some limitations. The first limitation was restricted to the students of the Seventh grade with 20 students of SMPN 1 Bukit Kemuning Lampung Utara. The second limitation was restricted to the improvement of the students' writing achievement after being taught by using procedure of teaching writing based Communicative Language Teaching (CLT). The researcher chooses five principles of Communicative Language Teaching suggested by Richards and Rodgers (2001). This research also focused on descriptive text that describes people.

I.6 Definition of the Terms

Writing

Writing is a process of presenting ideas, in a rational, organized, systematic, reasonable, and logical way which is intended to make the reader understand about certain things by following certain rules and features.

Communicative Language Teaching (CLT)

Communicative Language Teaching is an approach that focuses primarily on the development of students' communicative competence in language teaching and the development of procedures of teaching four language skills that acknowledge the interdependence of language and communication.

Descriptive Text

Descriptive text is a text that has the purpose for giving information about people, place, and things.

Student Writing Achievement

Student writing achievement is the student's skill to express ideas, thoughts, and feelings to other people in written symbols to make other people or readers understand the ideas conveyed.

II. LITERATURE REVIEW

This part presents some parts of notions. It consists of concept of writing, aspects of writing, procedure of writing, teaching writing, types of genres writing text, descriptive text, concept of communicative language teaching (CLT), the procedure of teaching writing descriptive text based on communicative language teaching (CLT), theoretical assumption, and hypotheses.

2.1 Concept of writing

Writing is one of the skills in English that must be mastered by students to achieve learning objectives. They can communicate their ideas through writing. They can also transfer information and knowledge to other. In other words, writing can be said as a mean of communication between the writer and the reader. It is stated by Heaton (1990) that the writing is complex because it is not only including grammatical and rhetorical devices but also conceptual and judgment elements. Ghufron (2016) states that writing requires the students to perform their skill in expressing and arranging their ideas into a written text which should be understandable for any readers. Another opinion comes from Reszy (2013) states that writing is one of the language skills besides listening, speaking and reading that must be mastered by English learners. They have to able to express their thoughts in writing to develop their ideas, and make readers interest. Through writing, they can also transfer information and knowledge to others.

Based on the explanation above, the researcher can conclude that writing is the ability to express the writer's ideas and convey messages in written form for readers to read as a verbal communication to be meaningful and comprehensible.

2.2. Aspects of writing

There are some aspects in writing that need to be considered for authors to be successful in their writing (Jacob, 1981). They are mentioned below.

- Content refers to the substance of writing, the experience of the main idea
 (unity), i.e., groups of related statements that a writer presents as a unit in
 developing a subject. Content paragraph does the work of conveying ideas
 rather than fulfilling the special function of transition, re-statement, and
 emphasis.
- 2. Organization refers to the logical organization of the content (coherence). It is scarcely more than an attempt to piece together all collections of facts and jumble ideas. Even in early drafts it may still be searching for order, trying to make out patterns in its material and working to bring the particulars of his subject in line with what is still only a half-formed notion of purpose.
- 3. Vocabulary refers to the selection of words which are suitable with the content. It begins with the assumption that the writer wants to express the ideas as clearly and directly as he or she can. Generally, clarity should be the prime objective.
- 4. Grammar of language is a description of the way that the language behaves. Without having knowledge of grammar, the writer cannot make his or her language communicative to a great variety of readers from different situations.

5. Mechanic refers to the use of conventional graphics of the language, i.e., the step of arranging letters, words, paragraphs, by using knowledge of structure and some others related to one another. A writer must pay attention to the use of the punctuation and applying of the word of sentences.

Heaton (1990) also mentions that there are several aspects that should be considered in producing a written work, those are:

- Content refers to the ideas and information that are conveyed. This aspect emphasizes the author's communication skills to convey a message to the reader. Therefore, the writer's ideas must be clear, coherent, and relevant to the context.
- 2. Organization refers to how the author structures his or her ideas and information. It addresses the author's capacity to organize and express his or her ideas in a logical and consistent manner. To have a good organization, the writers should consider the use of transitions, topic sentences, and paragraph structure.
- 3. Vocabulary refers to the variety and appropriateness of the words employed. This aspect of writing highlights the writer's ability to employ words correctly and effectively in context. The writer necessarily needs to use precise and varied vocabulary in his or her writing.
- Grammar refers to the accuracy and complexity of the sentence structures
 used in a piece of writing. It points out the author's command of correct and
 appropriate grammar usage.

 Mechanics include punctuation, capitalization, and grammar. This aspect of writing focuses on the writer's ability to use correct mechanics to effectively communicate their ideas.

Regarding producing a well-developed and effective writing, it is crucial to consider the application of five writing aspects in the teaching and learning process. Both the teacher and students might gain from it. These elements will improve students' writing skills, and teachers may employ them as a guide when assessing their writing.

2.3 Stages of Writing

According to Harmer (2004), writing process has four main stages, they are:

1. Planning

In this stage, students plan and decide what they are going to write. Students start gathering information and ideas for writing by making notes or doing all their planning in their minds. When planning, they have to consider three main issues, they are the purpose of the writing, the audience and the content structure to sequence the facts, ideas or arguments which they have decided to include.

2. Drafting

In this stage, students write tentative ideas which are related to the topic that they are going to write without paying attention to the errors.

3. Revising

After the students made their draft, they re-read their draft to see where it works and where it does not. Perhaps the order of the information is not clear or the sentence is ambiguous. This stage helps the students to make a revision of their writing. Revising is looking back over what has been written.

4. Publishing

The students make a change of their work after the process of editing. The final product may be different from the first draft after going through some steps. All the writing processes above cannot be separated because those are elements in composing a well-written text.

From the explanation above, this research will apply Harmer (2004) writing procedure which includes planning, drafting, editing, and publishing. By following those stages, students will compose a piece of writing and be able to produce a piece of written work. Therefore, teacher should consider applying the steps above in the process of teaching writing. It is important since the students have to guide and make sure they pass all main activities in writing.

2.4 Teaching Writing

Teaching writing is to guide the students to express and elaborate their ideas in written form. Arends (2012) states that teaching is a process of promoting growth in students. Referring to the statement, teaching writing can be a good step in improving students' achievement to express their ideas or thoughts on paper. This means that teaching writing is very important to build students' language achievement

To guide the students in writing, the teacher needs to choose the appropriate way, by knowing first what kind of the difficulties faced by the students, then finding the fit approach or technique to solve the problems. A writing process is done through some stages. Harmer (2004) stated that the process of writing consists of planning (pre-writing), drafting, revising, and producing the final version (publishing).

Furthermore, to achieve the goal of teaching writing, Nunan (2003) states that there are several concepts for writing that may be used in classroom settings, as follows:

1. Fully understanding the reasons behind students' writing

When a teacher's aims do not align with those of the students or those of the school or institution where the student is enrolled, this causes the most displeasure with writing education. Students should be informed of the learning objectives in a manner that makes sense to them.

2. Giving students several opportunities to write

Writing is an essential ability that requires someone to express their thoughts in the form of text. As a result, the teacher should often ask the students to write. The students will get used to writing, which will enhance their writing abilities. Thus, the teacher should provide students with several chances to write by assigning them various forms of writing.

3. Making input valuable and meaningful

Students need writing feedback. Provide clear comments to the students in order to assist them in improving their writing abilities. Giving feedback on a student's work should include the process of editing and revising. To encourage independent inquiry, the teacher might provide a summary of comments that tells students to identify their problems and correct them on their own.

4. Clearly explain to students how their work will be evaluated.

Students often believe that the teacher subjectively assesses their writing.

This implies that the teacher should know the writing standard and

assessment. When evaluating writing, the teacher should consider to several components and make sure that the students understand that.

Before the teacher starts to teach the material, the teacher should make decisions in making lesson plans. Callum et al (2000) states that the lesson plan is the product of teachers' thoughts about their classes; what they hope to achieve and how they hope to achieve it. Lesson plan contains very detailed activity from pre-teaching, main and the closing phase as a partial lesson plan document. Moreover, lesson plan is a face-to-face learning activity plan for one or more meetings. In implementing the lesson, there are some activities the teachers should be done: (1) explain to the students the purpose of the lesson, (2) discuss the material, (3) gives the concrete examples for each material, (4) conclude the lesson. Regarding to Kurikulum Merdeka, there are three stages of teaching writing: pre-activity, whilst activity and post activity. The following were descriptions of teaching stages:

a. Pre-activity

Pre -activity is the first step in teaching. Here, the teachers prepare the students physically and mentally before they are active in the lesson.

b. Whilst-activity

Whilst-teaching is divided into three stages: exploration, elaboration, and confirmation.

1. Exploration

In this stage, the teacher explores the students' background knowledge of the material that will be discussed in the meeting.

2. Elaboration

After the students understand the materials, the topic is chosen as the foundation to start writing. The teacher asks the students to deliver as many ideas as they have about the topic through various activities.

3. Confirmation

Teacher clarifies the work and adds some information needed. It provides teacher correction feedback for students' writing.

c. Post-activity

In a post activity where teacher and students conclude the lesson.

In conclusion, teachers should choose the appropriate activities in every stage of teaching writing to facilitate students to achieve the goals of learning, especially writing achievement by considering the principles of teaching writing.

2.5 Descriptive Text

Descriptive text refers to the senses, describing how an object looks, feels, smells, tastes, and sounds into several paragraphs. Fawcett and Sandberg (1984) in Jayanti (2019) define a descriptive text as a kind of text that describes something, a person, a scene, or an object in words so others can imagine it. Wyrick (1987) also states a descriptive writer creates a word image of people, places, and things and uses emotion to pick out subtleties in the description to impress the person. In addition, descriptive text is a kind of text whose purpose is to describe a particular person or thing in detail. Descriptive text has some language features that both students and teachers must consider. As stated by Emilia and Christie (2013) in Anggun (2016), the language features found in descriptive text are:

- 1. It focuses on specific participants as the main character
- It employs simple present tense as dominant tense, but sometimes it uses the simple past tense when the object described no longer exists
- It uses linking verbs or relational processes frequently (such as is, are, has, have, belongs to) to classify, and describe appearance or qualities and parts or functions of phenomena.
- It applies action verbs or material process and behavioral process in giving additional description regarding action and behavior done by the participants in text.
- 5. It makes use of a mental verb or mental process when describing feelings.
- 6. It utilizes nominal group or noun phrases frequently to describe the subject or object in more detail.
- 7. It employs adjectives to add information to nouns and uses adverbs to add information to verbs to provide a more detailed description of the topic.
- It uses adverbial phrases to add more information about manner, place, or time and is sometimes realized in the embedded clause which functions as circumstances.

In writing descriptive text, it consists of generic structure. Gerot and Wignell (1994) as cited by Jayanti (2019) stated that descriptive text has a generic structure as follows:

1. Identification

Identification is an advent to the item or component defined which includes who, what, when, or where. It is an opening statement in the first paragraph that introduces the subject of the description.

2. Description

The description can be in the form of an explanation of the subject's physical appearance, the qualities of the subject, advantages, or special aspects that the subject has.

2.6 Concept of Communicative Language Teaching (CLT)

Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) is one of teaching approaches that starts from a theory of language as communication then formulated into a design of an instructional system, materials, classroom activities and technique, and for teacher and learner roles (Richard and Rodgers, 2001). This approach involves developing language proficiency through interactions inserted in meaningful contexts. Brandl (2008) defined that CLT is based on the theory that the primary function of a language is to use it in communication. Liao (2000) stated CLT views a language as a functional system. CLT emphasizes the activity through interaction and communication rather than memorization (Toro et al, 2019). From the explanations of the theories above, it can be concluded that the Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) is an approach that mainly focuses on learning the language through communication. Communicative Language Teaching also has some principles as follows (Richards and Rodgers, 2001):

 Communicative Language Teaching engages the learners in real life situations and real communication in the classroom for example role-play, simulation, telling story, discussion, presentation, group work, information gap, and games so that they can understand how to communicate and use the language in the real world.

- 2. Authentic and meaningful communication should be the goal of classroom activities. Authentic means provide the students with "real-life" materials. These might include language-based realia, such as signs, advertisements, and newspapers, or graphic and visual sources around which communicative activities can be built, such as outline, maps, pictures, symbols, graphs, and charts. Different kinds of objects can be used to support communicative exercises.
- CLT emphasizes cooperative tasks rather than individualistic tasks for the students.
- 4. CLT believes that communication is the fundamental objective of language and the learners need to develop all the skills of language.
- Learning is a process of creative construction and involves trial and error. It
 offers opportunities to join in teacher-students and students-students
 interactions in the classroom.

It has been mentioned earlier that CLT promotes students' active learning by meaningful interactions and the teacher can focus on encouraging the students to participate in group work. Meaningful interaction is the communication among language learners that focuses on the message they want to convey instead of the form (Young, 1988). Jeyasala (2014) claims that EFL teachers need to provide students with spaces to interact with others to enhance their abilities to use the language. Krashen & Terrell (1983) added that when the teacher wants his or her students to acquire a second language, teacher needs to provide them with comprehensible input and natural communication chances in a psychologically nonthreatening ambience. In light of CLT, students should participate in classroom

activities collaboratively rather than individually. In this situation, students feel more comfortable listening to their friends rather than relying on the teacher as the model. On the other hand, teachers should function as facilitators and monitors, then as models for accurate speech and writing, holding students accountable for producing numerous sentences without errors. By becoming a facilitator for language learning, the instructor acquires a different attitude regarding learners' errors. Teachers do scaffolding in order to help students produce output where they may still have difficulties in writing or give corrections with a supportive and positive attitude.

The classroom activities in communicative language teaching are unlimited, provided that such exercises enable learners to engage learners in communication and attain the communicative objectives (Richard and Rodgers, 2001). The teacher should make problem solving activities for example information gaps in order to make the students have a lot of interactions in the classroom (Firiady, 2018). Information gap is when one side of the communication does know about something and the other shares the information with it through communication. In this case, the students have the choice to use different forms to express the same function they intend to convey in their communication. On the other side, the students give feedback to each other and this way learning takes place. The students had very few chances to use information gaps and knowledge sharing. With those interactions, students can develop their own learning to master writing skill. Interaction plays an important role in language learning since it gives the students the opportunity to practice and use the language (Toro et al, 2019). It also can give benefits for students to expose the ideas of a text by emphasizing on the cooperative

tasks rather than individualistic tasks in the learning process (Richard and Rodgers, 2001). For this reason, it is necessary to find effective ways to adapt English teaching using pair or group work activities. Abe (2013) also claims that information gap activities, collaboration development, and discussions are useful in classrooms where the CLT approach is applied. Here are some information gap activities that can be implemented in teaching and learning process in the classroom (Harmer, 2004; Legutke and Thomas, 1991):

☑ Role-play a character/person

- a) The students are divided into pairs.
- Student A is given a card that contains a character/person. Student
 A will read the information about that person and try to introduce
 herself/himself to others as that character.
- c) Student B tries to guess the character or person by asking some questions to student A in the form of Yes/No questions. Student A must give the information by answering the questions.

2 Reassembling a text

- a) The class is divided into four sub-group. Each sub-group is given a descriptive text which has been photocopied and cut into several pieces according to the number of paragraphs in the text.
- b) Each individual in the sub-group reads a piece of the text and try to write the text in their own notebook. After that, they try to shares the information from the text to others. From this collective information, they try to sequence the paragraphs and thus reassemble the text.

Describe and Draw

- a) The students are divided into pairs.
- b) Two students in which each of them has different task, one as the instructor who describes the original picture to his/her partner, and the other one act as the artist who draws the picture based on his/her partner instruction.

The researcher used all those information gap activities above in teaching descriptive text as one of the principles of CLT proposed by Richards and Rodgers (2001). Moreover, the researcher also implemented all the CLT principles suggested by Richard and Rodgers (2001).

2.7 The Procedure of Teaching Writing Descriptive Text based on Communicative Language Teaching (CLT)

In this case, the researcher's goal is to develop and combine the procedure of teaching writing based on Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) in order to solve students' difficulties faced in the writing process. There are three procedures in teaching writing. They are the pre-activity, whilst activity, and post-activity. Pre-activity is the beginning stage in teaching. Pre-activity is the teacher's first session starting the lesson by greeting all students. The teacher then goes over the absence list with the class before praying together. Then, the teacher prepares the necessary materials and equipment for the lesson or when the whole activity begins. Furthermore, the second session is whilst activity. The primary action begins during this session. The teacher employs a variety of media or learning strategies, including

information gap activities, pair work, group work, writing on handouts or outlines, presentation, and so on. During this session, many students will pay close attention and participate actively in learning by asking questions of the teacher or answering questions provided by the teacher. Then, the teacher offers comments on the day's learning. The last session is post-activity. Teacher and students do some reflection by asking several questions related to the material or asking their feelings toward learning process. After that, the teacher gives students homework, which is frequently followed by praying and greeting the students to end the lesson. The use of CLT principles can be included at each lesson stage. These are the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT principles are:

1. Pre-activity

- Teacher starts the class by greeting and checking the attendance list of the students first.
- b. Teacher stimulates and brainstorms the students by giving questions related to their personal experience to introduce the topic.
- c. Teacher does apperceptions.
- d. Teacher shows some pictures of famous people.
- e. Students are asked to give their opinion about the descriptions or appearance of the pictures.
- f. Teacher and students are having discussions together about how to describe people.
- g. Teacher shows an example of descriptive text in the form of a video or picture and explain the material.

h. Teacher wrote some sentences from the text to show its tenses then connected them to the descriptive text.

2. Whilst-activity

- a. Teacher divides the students into some groups.
- Students will choose their topic that closely related to their daily lives or famous people.
- Teacher provides a handout for each student as a media to describe the people.
- d. Students are asked to do several information gap activities.
- Students are discussing and sharing their ideas in groups and try to make
 a simple descriptive text.
- f. Teacher walks around and monitors, encouraging the students in a supportive way to provide everyone's communication in the target language.
- g. Teacher allows the students to do peer feedback by exchanging their writing. After that, they prepare questions based on the information that is provided (and the information that is left out).
- h. Teachers give some comments or suggestions (teachers' feedback).
- i. Students are revising and publishing their descriptive text.

3. Post-activity

- a. Teacher and students do some reflection.
- b. Teacher closed the lesson.

There is no exact way or model in applying Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) principles in writing procedure. Therefore, the teacher should be creative to create or to develop available models as a suitable learning process both in the classroom. The explanation can be seen in the following table.

Table 1. Procedure of Teaching Writing Descriptive Text based on Communicative Language Teaching (CLT)

1.	Procedure of Teaching Writing based Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) Teacher shows pictures of famous people and try to ask some questions to students about their opinion in describing people. Teacher and students are collaboratively discussed the material of descriptive text.	Principles of Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) by Richards and Rodgers (2001) Authentic and meaningful communication should be the goal of classroom activities. "real-life" materials such as pictures should be introduced.	Stages of Writing (Harmer, 2004) Planning
2.	Teacher wrote some sentences from the text to show its tenses then connected them to the descriptive text.	Learning to use language forms appropriately is an important part of communicative activity.	Planning
3.	Students are divided into some pairs or groups.	Engaging the students with communicative activity such as pair work or group work.	Planning

4.	Students will choose one of the topics that are close to their life as an object that they will describe together in their group.	Provide the students with authentic material (real-life).	Planning
5.	Teacher provides a handout for each student as a media to describe the people. Teacher can also provide the students with information gaps activities (Role-play a character, Reassembling a text, and Describe & Draw)	Exposing the students with communicative activities such as information gap activity, group discussion, pair work and different kinds of objects or media can be used to support communicative competence to achieve target language.	Drafting
7.	Students are discussing and sharing their ideas in groups and try to make a simple descriptive text.	CLT emphasizes cooperative tasks rather than individualistic tasks for the students. Students should be given an opportunity to express their ideas and opinions with peers.	Drafting
8.	Teacher walks around and monitors, encouraging the students in a supportive way to provide everyone's communication in the target language. Teacher also gives some feedback to the students in revising their writing.	Teacher acts as an advisor and facilitator during communicative activities.	Revising

9.	Students can do peer	Learning is a process of	Revising
	feedback by exchanging	creative construction and	
	their writing. After that,	involves trial and error.	
	they prepare questions	Students should be given	
	based on the information	an opportunity to express	
	that is provided (and the	their ideas and opinions.	
	information that is left		
	out).		
10.	Students revise their	Cooperative tasks rather	Revising
	work and write the	than individualistic tasks	
	complete descriptive text	for the students.	
	in the group.		
11.	Students publish their	Engages the learners with	Publishing
	works using	real life communication in	
	presentation.	the classroom.	

It is clearly stated that in the four steps process of writing will take place in some communicative activities that employ CLT principles such as pair and group work, discussion, information gap activities, peer-feedback, authentic materials, and presentation. All five the CLT principles proposed by Richards and Rodgers (2001) can be implemented in the communicative activities above.

In planning, students and teachers discuss together in determining topics that they like and related to their daily life for students. Then, students will be divided into group work and having discussion together in gathering ideas or information related to the topic. In this case, the teacher also helps the discussion between groups to make the discussion more focused. In the drafting stage, the teacher provides a handout about the material to help students develop their ideas. Teachers also provide the students with several information gaps activities (Role-play a character,

Reassembling a text, and Describe & Draw) in order to help them elaborate and gather the ideas.

In the revising stage, students exchange their writing with other groups and ask them to make some questions based on the information that is provided (and the information that is left out). This activity gave the opportunity for students to express their ideas and opinions related to the topics freely and built students' creativity as well. After that, students will collect ideas together and determine which ideas will be used together in their writing. Next, students can continue working in their groups and complete the whole text. Teacher walks around and monitors, encouraging the students in a supportive way to provide everyone's communication in the target language. Teacher also gives some feedback to the students in revising their writing.

In the final stage that is publishing, students will be asked to present their writing in the form of a presentation in front of the class and other groups can observe and appreciate their writing. Hopefully, the implementation of CLT principle in the procedure of teaching writing can maximize the students actively participation in the classroom that can enhance students' writing achievement.

2.8 Theoretical Assumptions

Based on the explanation on literature review, it can be assumed that writing is the complex and crucial skill in learning a language. Several problems faced by the students in writing, especially descriptive text such as; lack of express, organize, generate their ideas, lack of motivation, and students only focus on individual

learning in writing. Sometimes students lack of ideas to make their word network because they do not have ideas about the topic discussed. It is sometimes too difficult for them to organize in writing so it impacts to their skill at making sentences and they tend to be passive in writing. Teachers need to create learning activities using methods or approaches that are able to give students increased motivation through communicative learning. Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) approach is one of approaches which emphasizes that the goal of language learning is communicative competence. CLT approach can offer a limited procedure for resolving students' problems during each writing process, such as planning, drafting, revising, and publishing by providing communicative activities.

Communicative activities such as information gap activities, provide handout and pictures, authentic materials, peer feedback, teacher feedback, and presentation would accommodate meaningful interactions by giving students a chance for students to work collaboratively rather than individually. It has been mentioned earlier that CLT offers opportunities to join in teacher-students and students-students in the classroom. As a result, students can actively participate in activities through group work and easily elaborate and organize their writing a text, especially descriptive text. It happens because they can share ideas among students and are guided by the teachers to write. By using the CLT approach in the procedure of teaching writing, the students feel more enjoyment and interest in the learning process. They may have a chance to discuss and select the appropriate sentences related to the topic with another student or teacher in order to reflect their errors. Hence, the students are more likely to produce well-developed and well-organized writing content. Therefore, the researcher assumes implementing a communicative

language teaching approach in the procedure of teaching writing can help both students and teachers in learning process to promote communicative activities as well to guide students to work collaboratively while solving the students' problem in writing descriptive text.

2.9 Hypotheses

The following hypotheses are proposed to answer the stated research questions:

- 1. H_0 = There is no significant difference in students' achievement in writing descriptive text between those who are being taught by using the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT and those who are being taught by using the original procedure of teaching writing.
 - H_1 = There is a significant difference in students' achievement in writing descriptive text between those who are being taught by the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT and those who are being taught by the original procedure of teaching writing.
- 2. Ho = There is no aspect of writing which improves significantly after being taught by using the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT and those who are being taught by using the original procedure of teaching writing.
 Hi = There is an aspect of writing which improves significantly after being taught by using the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT and those who are taught by using the original procedure of teaching writing.

Therefore, the theories that have been discussed in this chapter are concept of writing, aspects of writing, procedure of writing, teaching writing, types of genres writing text, descriptive text, concept of communicative language teaching (CLT), procedure of teaching writing descriptive text based on communicative language teaching (CLT), theoretical assumption, and hypotheses.

III. METHODS

This chapter discusses how to conduct research which consists of research design,

setting, subject of research, data collecting technique, research procedure, research

instrument, reliability and validity of instrument, rubric scoring system, data

analysis, data treatment, and hypothesis testing.

3.1 Design

Using a quantitative design, the researcher conducted an experimental design to see

students' writing achievement after being taught using procedure of teaching

writing based on Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) principles. Control

group pretest-posttest design was used in this research to answer the first research

question because in the experimental group the students learned through a

procedure of teaching writing that has been incorporate with CLT and the control

group did the original teaching writing procedure. The research design was

conducted as follows:

G1: T1 O T2

G2: T1 X T2

(Setiyadi, 2018)

Note:

G1 : Experimental group (Procedure of teaching writing based on CLT)

G2 : Control group (Original Procedure of teaching writing)

T1 : Time to take the first data collection before treatment (Pre-test)

T2 : Time to take the second data collection after treatment (Post-test)

X : Treatment 1 (Procedure of teaching writing based on CLT)

O : Treatment 2 (Original procedure of teaching writing)

The researcher conducted this research in three meetings. In the first meeting, students were given a pretest. In the second meeting, the students worked collaboratively in information gap activities. In the third meeting, students were given post-test at the end of the treatment.

3.2 Variables

Variable is a noun that stands for variation within a class of object, such as gender, achievement, motivation, behavior, or environment (Setiyadi, 2018). There are two kinds of variables namely independent variable (X), dependent variable (Y). In this research, the variables are described as follows:

- 1. Procedure of teaching writing through CLT approach as the first independent variable (X_1) .
- Original procedure of teaching writing as the second independent variable (X₂).
- 3. Students' achievement in writing descriptive text as dependent variable (Y). It can be stated that there are two independent variables and one dependent variable in this research.

3.3 Setting

The research was conducted at SMP Negeri 1 Bukit Kemuning which is located in Kecamatan Bukit Kemuning, Lampung Utara. The researcher collected the data from the 7th grade students in SMP Negeri 1 Bukit Kemuning.

3.4 Data Sources

The population of this research was seventh-grade students at SMP Negeri 1 Bukit Kemuning. The sample in this study was chosen by using purposive sampling based on the English teacher's recommendation. The researcher used two classes, the first class is VIII.1 for control class which consists of 20 students and the second class is VIII.2 for experimental class which consists of 20 students. The students in the first class learned through the procedure of teaching writing based on the CLT approach while the students in the second class learned through the procedure of teaching writing.

3.5 Data Collecting Technique

The data collecting procedure are as follows:

1. Writing test

Pre-test

The pre-test was given to the students before conducting the treatments. It aimed to assess students' descriptive text writing achievement by using the original procedure of teaching writing. The test also aimed to determine if students' writing achievements improved from the pretest to the post-test by following the treatment.

Post-test

Post-test was given to the students after conducting the treatments to find out the students' writing achievement in both classes. The students' post-tests were examined by the teacher based on the aspects of writing.

In addition, the data are obtained from two kinds of tests namely pre-test and posttest. The two tests were administered to an experimental and control group.

3.6 Research Procedure

The procedure of the research are as follows:

1. Determining the population and sample

The researcher chose seventh-grade students of SMP Negeri 1 Bukit Kemuning as the population of this research. The researcher took two classes as the sample of the research.

2. Selecting the materials

The material is based on *Kurikulum Merdeka* for the 7th grade students in junior high school. The researcher selected some examples of descriptive text from English books and the internet.

3. Administering the pre-test

The pretest was given to the students before the teacher taught them by using the procedure of teaching writing to determine their writing achievement.

The students were asked to create descriptive text based on the topic and instruction given by the teacher.

4. Giving the treatments

The treatments were given for three meetings. In the control class, the researcher applied original procedure of teaching writing. Moreover, in the experimental class, the researcher implemented the procedure of teaching writing based on the CLT approach. The first was the preparation to assist students in engaging their schemata, which would aid them in predicting the material. Teacher was given some pictures that describing the people and provided some examples of descriptive text. The teacher discussed together with the students as a result the students would actively engage in learning the materials.

After that, the teacher divided the class into pairs or groups. They worked collaboratively using information gap activities to engage their motivation and interest in the learning process. The teacher asked the students to discuss with their friends to build knowledge of the topic they will write with outline. After brainstorming and generating their ideas in a group about the topic, students can start writing their sentences. After that, they continued writing a paragraph and then a whole text. Next, the students were asked to revise their writing by peer feedback. Teacher also gives some feedback related to their writing. Lastly, the teacher asked the students to publish and share their writing by presentation using various media or graphic design.

5. Administering post-test

After receiving treatment, the students did a post-test. This test aims to evaluate the progress of students' writing achievement of descriptive text after the implementation of procedure of teaching writing based CLT approach. The test is similar to the pre-test taken by the students yet they would write in different topics.

These are some of the steps that the researcher took while conducting the research. It is critical to point out that the procedure must be completed in the correct sequence in order for the research results to be valid and reliable.

3.7 Validity and Reliability

The researcher understood that measuring instruments' validity and reliability are important. As a result, the researcher used the following procedure to measure the validity of the instruments used in this research:

1. Validity of writing test

It is valid if the test measures the object being tested and meets the criteria. According to Setiyadi (2018), validity refers to how well a test measures what it is designed to measure. Two types of validity must be evaluated:

2 Content Validity

Content validity is the extent to which a test measures a representative sample of the subject matter content (Hatch and Farhady,1982). The writing test was given to students, which was arranged based on the syllabus from *Kurikulum Merdeka* for the 7th grade students of junior high school. In this research, the researcher

examined the test based on the learning objectives stated on the syllabus made by the teacher in order to compose the material and activity. The tests given to the students are made based on the indicators on the syllabus.

2 Construct Validity

Construct validity is concerned with whether or not the test performance can be described psychologically (Hatch and Farhady, 1982). The researcher measured the students' writing tests based on five writing aspects using the following criteria (Heaton, 1990); content, organization, language use, vocabulary, and mechanics. The test construction could be considered valid if the test items measure every written form aspect. The researcher used table checklists to measure content and construct validity.

2. Reliability of writing test

Reliability refers to how consistent a test score is and gives us an indication of how accurate the test score is. This research used *inter-rater reliability* to achieve the writing pretest and post-test reliability. The first rater was the researcher herself, and the second rater was an English teacher of SMP Negeri 1 Bukit Kemuning. The researcher utilized *Rank Spearman Correlation* to examine the correlation between two raters. The formula used in this study:

$$R=1-\frac{6.\Sigma d^2}{N(N^2-1)}$$

(Hatch and Farhady, 1982)

Notes:

R: Reliability of the test

N: Number of students

D: The difference of rank correlation (mean score from pre-test and post-test)

1 - 6: Constant number

The criteria of reliability proposed by Setiyadi (2018) are as follows:

- Reliability range from 0.800 up to 1.000 is very high

- Reliability range from 0.600 up to 0.800 is high

- Reliability range from 0.400 up to 0.600 is fair

- Reliability range from 0.200 up to 0.400 is low

- Reliability range from 0.000 up to 0.200 is very low

3.8 Data Analysis

Independent sample T-Test was used in this research to answer the first research question and Repeated measure T-Test to answer the second research question. The researcher measured the students' results in writing using a scoring rubric adopted from Jacob et al (1981). Then, the scores of the two raters were combined, and the average score used as the final score. There are two raters to score the writing tests. The researcher who filled the scoring test will be the first rater and the English teacher at school will be the second rater. In order to answer two research questions, the students' scores were computed as follows:

- 1. Scoring the pre-test and post-test by using inter-rater.
- 2. Tabulating the result of the test and calculating the gain of pre-test and post-test. The researcher used a statistical application called *SPSS* to calculate the scores and to analyze whether there is an improvement on students' writing achievement after the treatments.
- 3. Composing a discussion regarding the result.
- 4. Drawing a conclusion from tabulated results of pre-test and post-test. Then, the data was analyzed by *Independent Sample T-test* for the first research question and *Repeated Measure T-Test* for the second research question.
- 5. Interpreting the obtained data.

3.9 Data Treatment

In this part, there are some steps before answering the hypothesis testing, the researcher conducted normality and homogeneity for the writing test.

3.9.1 Normality Test

The aim of composing the normality test is to find out whether the data is normally distributed or not. The researcher used the SPSS *Saphiro-Wilk* formula to analyze the data in order to find the value. The hypotheses of the normality test as follows:

 H_0 : The distribution of the data is not normal.

H₁: The distribution of the data is normal.

The level of the significance use is 0.05. H_1 is accepted if the result of the normality test is higher than 0.05 (p>q).

2.9.2 Homogeneity Test

To find out the homogeneity, Levene's Test was applied by using SPSS. In this test, the decision was taken by considering the score of probability. If the probability score (Sig.) is > 0.05, the dependent variables' variances are homogeneous. If the probability score (Sig.) is < 0.05, the dependent variables' variances are not homogeneous.

3.10 Hypotheses Testing

The researcher used *Independent Sample T-Test* in SPSS to find out the significant difference of students' writing achievement. The hypothesis was approved if the sig value is lower than 0.05. The formulation could be seen as follows:

 H_0 = There is no significant difference in students' achievement in writing descriptive text between those who are taught by using the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT and those who are taught by the original procedure of teaching writing.

 H_1 = There is a significant difference in students' achievement in writing descriptive text between those who are taught by using the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT and those who are taught by using the original procedure of teaching writing.

The researcher also analyzed which aspects of writing skill that improve significantly after being taught through the procedure of teaching writing based CLT and those who are taught using the original procedure of teaching writing. The

researcher used *Repeated Measure T-Test* and it is calculated by using SPSS. The formulation could be seen as follows:

Ho = There is no aspect of writing which improves significantly after being taught by using the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT and those who are taught by the original procedure of teaching writing.

Hi = There is an aspect of writing which improves significantly after being taught by using the procedure of teaching writing based on CLT and those who are taught by the original procedure of teaching writing.

This chapter has discussed research design, variables, setting, data sources, data collecting technique, research procedure, validity and reliability, data analysis, data treatment, and hypothesis testing.

V. CONCLUSION AND SUGGESTION

This final chapter focuses on the discussion of two points, conclusion of the research finding and suggestions for English teachers who want to implement the modified method in teaching writing and the other researchers who want to conduct investigation in the same area.

5.1 Conclusion

After conducting the research and composing the result and discussion, several conclusions can be drawn to sum up the main points of the study. First, CLT (Communicative Language Teaching) principles, especially information gap activities, is very possible to be applied in English teaching by using its principles into the procedure of teaching writing. The procedure of teaching writing using the CLT approach may give a positive impact to the students' writing achievement, as found in this research that students were able to make written work clearer and more well-organized. It can be seen that the aspect of writing that is organization was the highest aspect that was enhanced. The group work in information gap activities helped students organize their thoughts better as they talked and worked together. This suggests that using information gap activities through teaching and learning processes can make written work clearer and more well-organized because the students enjoy the collaborative activities. It has been mentioned earlier that CLT offers opportunities to join in teacher-students and students-students in the

classroom. As a result, students can actively participate in activities through group work and easily elaborate their writing, especially descriptive text.

Secondly, for teachers, it is essential to recognize the limitations of a methodology or procedure and come up with a solution, such as changing it using a certain approach. It enables them to ensure that the procedure utilized delivers enhanced results in terms of students' achievement throughout the learning process. This research has provided evidence that the experimental group taught by procedure of teaching writing based CLT showed more significant gain in scores compared to the control group that followed the learning process using the traditional procedure or method. This was attributed to the freedom and flexibility granted to the experimental group in expressing ideas and actively participating in learning activities.

5.2 Suggestions

These following suggestions are proposed for both English teachers and further researchers. They are elaborated in the explanation below.

5.2.1 English Teachers

Considering the positive result of using CLT principles in the procedure of teaching writing in enhancing students' writing achievement, English teachers are intended to implement the CLT principles, specifically information gap activities in teaching writing. Information gap activities helped students to actively participate in classroom activities and give them more flexibility to express their ideas collaboratively. Information gap activities can be created through various kinds of activities that can give

students the opportunity to exchange information that they did not know before in completing assignments given by the teacher. Students can use language more actively because they are forced to interact more by asking specific questions and most of them are not passive anymore in classroom activity. Therefore, students can activate their communicative competence by practicing more language use.

It is highly recommended for teachers to examine the implementation of CLT approach, especially one of the crucial elements that is information gap activities to improve writing achievement of students in lower level, for example other grades in junior high school or even senior high school students. Moreover, the information gap activity required learners to interact for achieving their learning goals. It helped students to increase their responsibility to pay attention to their tasks and to be able produce well-organized writings. The teacher is suggested to let the students dominate the classroom even engage actively in the teaching and learning process to achieve language achievement especially in writing.

5.2.2 Further Researchers

For further research, it is better to use CLT approach in teaching writing especially information gap activities in the EFL classroom packed with lower-level students in junior high school who are considered to have a greater chance to use the language inside the classroom.

This research focus on the small sample size. Therefore, it is crucial to pay attention to this limitation because the use procedure of teaching writing

based on CLT would be effective in the small sample size rather than larger sample size. As far as CLT implementation is concerned, it is often said that communicative activities are not relevant to the overcrowded class because such activities consume too much time and the student numbers minimize the chance of individuals to actively participate in language learning.

However, in contrast to the traditional practice in which the teacher talks most of the time, collaborative learning such as information gap activities helps to solve the problem of classes being too large to offer many opportunities for students to participate in a communicative classroom. Another way of solving this problem is by holding extracurricular activities outside the classroom. Teacher can compensate for this situation by providing out-of-class communicative opportunities such as homework or English club.

As a final point, those statements above represent the conclusion of this study during the present research. Moreover, the suggestion above can be considered to conduct better further research with respect to students' achievements and CLT approach.

REFERENCES

- Abe, E. (2013). Communicative language teaching in Japan: Current practices and future prospects: Investigating students' experiences of current communicative approaches to English language teaching in schools in Japan. *English Today*, 29(2), 46-53. https://doi.org/10.1017/S0266078413000163.
- Agbatogun, A. O. (2014). Developing learners' second language communicative competence through active learning: Clickers or communicative approach? *Journal of Educational Technology and Society*, *17*(2), 257-269.
- Anggun, S. K. (2016). An analysis of descriptive text in english textbook using transitivity system (A case study of reading passages). *Journal of English and Education*, 4(1), 147-158.
- Alharbi, A. O. (2020). Exploring Communicative Language Teaching Principles Alignment of English Textbook in Saudi Arabia Middle School. *Arab World English Journal*, 11(4), 96-109.
- Ariyanti, A. (2016). The teaching of EFL writing in Indonesia. *Dinamika Ilmu*. 16(2), 263-277.
- Arends, R. (2012). Learning to Teach. New York: McGraw Hills Companies.
- Astawa, I. N., Mantra, I. B. N., and Widiastuti, I. A. M. S. (2017). Developing communicative English language tests for tourism vocational high school students. *International Journal of Social Sciences and Humanities* (*IJSSH*), 1(2), 58-64.
- Azizah, S. N. (2022). Projecting communicative language teaching (CLT) implementation in teaching spoken language at secondary school. *Journal of English Teaching, Applied Linguistics and Literatures (JETALL)*, 5(2), 179-198.
- Burke, B. M. (2013). Experiential professional development: A model for meaningful and long-lasting change in classrooms. *Journal of experiential education*, 36(3), 247-263.

- Brandl, K. (2008). *Communicative language teaching in action*. Upper Saddle River, NJ.
- Callum, R. and Richard, A. (2000). *Action Plan for Teachers*. London: British Broadcasting Corporation.
- Celce-Murcia, M., and McIntosh, L. (1991). *Teaching English as a second or foreign language*. Heinle and Heinle, Boston.
- Febriani, T. N. (2022). "Writing is challenging": factors contributing to undergraduate students' difficulties in writing English essays. *Erudita: Journal of English Language Teaching*, 2(1), 83-93.
- Firiady, M. (2018). Communicative language teaching through speaking activities designed in a textbook. *LLT Journal: A Journal on Language and Language Teaching*, 21(1), 104-113.
- Ghufron, M. A. (2016). Process-genre approach, product approach, and students' self-esteem in teaching writing. *Indonesian EFL Journal: Journal of ELT, Linguistics, and Literature*, 2(1), 37-54.
- Halimi, S. S. (2008). Indonesian teachers' and students' preferences for error correction. *Journal of the Humanities of Indonesia*, 10(1), 4.
- Harmer, (2004). The Practice of English Language Teaching. Essex: Longman
- Harmyn, H., and Syarif, H. (2013). The Implementation of Communicative Language Teaching Principles in Teaching English Business Letter Writing for a Vocational School. *English Language Teaching (ELT)*, 1(2).
- Hatch, E., and Farhady, H. (1982). Research design and statistics for applied linguistics.
- Heaton, J. B. (1990). Writing English Language Test. London: Longman Group.
- Jacobs., Holly. L., Stephen, A., Zingkgraf., Deanne. R., Wormuth, V., Faye, H.,Jane, B., Hughey. (1981). *Testing ESL Composition: A Practical Approach*.Rowley: Newbury House Publishers, Inc.
- Jayanti, A. D. (2019). Students' writing ability on English descriptive text at grade VIII in SMPN 33 Padang. *ENGLISH FRANCA: Academic Journal of English Language and Education*, 3(1), 72-94.
- Jeyasala, V. R. (2014). A prelude to practice: Interactive activities for effective communication in English. *Alternative pedagogies in the English language and communication classroom*, 164-170.

- Krashen, S. D., and Terrell, T. (1983). *Natural approach* (pp. 181-182). New York: Pergamon.
- Liao, X. Q. (2000). Communicative Language Teaching: Approach, Design and Procedure.
- Littlewood, W. (1981). *Communicative Language Teaching*. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Liunokas, Y. (2021). The Efficacy of Using Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) in Teaching Writing Descriptive Text to Indonesian English as Foreign Language (EFL) Students. *IDEAS: Journal on English Language Teaching and Learning, Linguistics and Literature*, 9(1).
- Legutke, M. and Thomas H., (1991). *Process and Experience in the Language Classroom*. London: Longman, p.96-99.
- Marcellino, M. (2009). English Language Teaching in Indonesia: A Continuous Challenge in Education and Cultural Diversity. *TEFLIN Journal: A publication on the teaching and learning of English*, 19(1).
- Megaiab, M. M. (2014). The English writing competence of the students of Indonesian senior high school. In *Proceedings of the West East Institute* (WEI) Academic Conference, Indonesia.
- Muho, A., and Kurani, A. (2011). The role of interaction in second language acquisition. *European Scientific Journal*, 16(1), 44-54.
- Nunan, D. (1989). *Designing tasks for the communicative classroom*. Cambridge university press.
- Nunan, D. (2003). *Practical English language teaching young learners*. Singapore: McGraw Hill.
- Nuriasih, N., Nurweni, A., & Mahpul, M. (2019). Improving Students' Writing in Recount Text Through the Use of Guiding Questions at SMAN 1 Seputih Mataram. *U-JET*, 8(1).
- Nurlatifah, L., and Yusuf, F. N. (2022). Students' Problems in Writing Analytical Exposition Text in EFL Classroom Context. *English Review: Journal of English Education*, 10(3), 801-810.
- Permendikbudristek (2022). Kurikulum Merdeka Tentang Pedoman Penerapan Kurikulum dalam Rangka Pemulihan Pembelajaran. Memuat struktur Kurikulum Merdeka serta aturan terkait pembelajaran dan asesmen. No. 262/M/2022.

- Richards, J. C., & Rodgers, Th. S. (2001). *Approaches and methods in language teaching*. (Second Edition). Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Rijnan, R., & Irwan, I. (2020). A Descriptive Study on the Use of Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) For Teaching Speaking at SMAN 1 Praya. *International Journal of Multicultural and Multireligious Understanding*, 7(1), 587-597.
- Rusnawati, E. (2016). The Implementation of Communicative Language Teaching (CLT) to Teach Spoken Recounts in Senior High School. *Lensa: Kajian Kebahasaan, Kesusastraan, dan Budaya*, 6(2), 197-206.
- Reszy, Y. H. (2013). Teaching writing a descriptive text by using environmental observation strategy. *Journal of English Language Teaching*, 28-38.
- Savignon, S. J., and Wang, C. (2003). *Communicative language teaching in EFL contexts: Learner attitudes and perceptions.*
- Setiyadi, B. (2018). *Metode Penelitian untuk Pengajaran Bahasa Asing (2nd ed.). Pendekatan kuantitatif dan kualitatif.* Graha Ilmu.
- Silva, T. (1993). Toward an understanding of the distinct nature of L2 writing: The ESL research and its implications. *TESOL quarterly*, 27(4), 657-677.
- Toro, V., Camacho-Minuche, G., Pinza-Tapia, E., & Paredes, F. (2019). The Use of the Communicative Language Teaching Approach to Improve Students' Oral Skills. *English Language Teaching*, *12*(1), 110-118.
- Walia, D. N. (2012). Traditional teaching methods vs. CLT: A study. *Frontiers of language and teaching*, *3*(1), 125-131.
- Wyrick, Jean. (1987). Steps to Writing Well. New York: Rinehart and Winston. Inc.
- Young, R. (1988). Input and interaction. *Annual review of applied linguistics*, 9, 122-134.